
 

 

Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG  

 
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 

AGENDA 
 

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore 
will not take place in a physical location.  

Date:   Thursday, 18th February, 2021 
Time:   2.00 pm 
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby      Tel: 01946 598328 

 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 December 2020  1 - 12 

4. Moorside Clean Energy Hub - Presentation by EDF   

5. Energy White Paper - For discussion   

6. UKAEA STEP siting process  13 - 16 

7. The Nuclear Decommissioning & Radioactive Waste 
Management Policy  

17 - 20 

8. The UK Government's approach to identifying a site for a 
Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive 
waste.  

21 - 24 

9. Industrial Solutions Hub (ISH) - verbal update   

10. Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board (SNEB) Forward Plan   

11. Exempt Information   

 The Chair to move: 
That under Section 100 (a) (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item on the grounds that, if they were present, there 
could be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in the 
relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

12. Planning Update   

13. Date and Time of Next Meeting   

 
 
 
 

 
Membership: Councillors Steven Morgan (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy 
Chair), David Banks, Gwynneth Everett, Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore and 
Sam Pollen. 

 
Contacts:  Direct Dial: 01946 598328 
   E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
   Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 10 DECEMBER 2020 
 

Present: Councillors Steven Morgan, in the Chair; Felicity Wilson, David Banks, 
Gwynneth Everett, Gemma Dinsdale, David Moore and Sam Pollen. 
 
Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive)(Items 1-5 only), Robert Ward (Nuclear 
Sector Development Manager), Steve Smith (Interim Nuclear Projects 
Manager)(Items 1-5 only), Mitchell McCombe (Nuclear Sector Development 
Officer), Heather Morrison (Principal Planning Officer), Clive Willoughby 
(Democratic Services Officer) and Rose Blaney (Electoral and Democratic 
Services Officer). 
 
Also Present:  Stephen Asquith (NDA Business Planning Manager) and  
Kelly Anderson (NDA Stakeholder Relations Manager for West Cumbria). 
 

SN 20/19 Apologies for Absence  
 
There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting.  
 

SN 20/20 Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor Steven Morgan declared a potential interest in the Moorside 
development area as a retained arbiter which support the Holding Company 
board of directors responsible for the Hinkley Point Nuclear Project.  He 
supports the HOLDCO board of directors under a contract through his family’s 
consultancy company .  The  HOLDCO Board includes EdF representatives as well 
as CGN, a Chinese nuclear company, but the Hinkley Point HOLDCO  is not a 
party to any part of the known Moorside proposals. 
 

SN 20/21 Minutes of the Meeting held on  15 October 2020  
 
The Chair reminded Members of the role and objectives of Strategic Nuclear and 
Energy Board which is advisory to the Executive. 
With regards the Nuclear Position Statements, these are guides for officers and 
determined by the Executive using recommendations from this Board. 
 
Councillor Pollen expressed his concern that Nuclear Position Statements are 
the Council’s position and should have the support of Full Council and not be an 
Executive decision. 
The Chair reminded the Board that all Councillors are welcome to attend the 
Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board meetings. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
Consideration was given to the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 
2020.  
 
A vote was then taken by way of a roll call.  
 
On a vote of 7 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:- 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2020 be 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair as soon as practicable. 
 

SN 20/22 NDA Business Plan and Strategy 4 update  
 
The Nuclear Sector Development Manager introduced this item and Stephen 
Asquith (NDA) who made a presentation to the Board. 
 
The Board were reminded that the Business Plan was a requirement of the 
Energy Act 2004 requires the NDA to include: 

 A summary of the work intended to be carried out 

 An estimate of the expenditure expected to be incurred 

 How plans contribute to objectives set out in the Strategy 
The Business Plan is published annually by the end of March, covers a three year 
period and must include public consultation. 
It contains a separate section for each business, setting out key activities for the 
coming three years. Planned expenditure for 2021/22 is also given. The key 
activities are linked either to the 47 Strategic Outcomes or to Critical Enablers. 
 
There were five Strategic Themes: Spent Fuels, Nuclear Materials, Integrated 
Waste Management and Site Decommissioning & Remediation. 
The fifth theme is ‘Critical Enablers’ 

 Asset Management 

 Cyber Security 

 Health, Safety, Sustainability, Environment and Wellbeing 

 Information Governance 

 People 

 Public and Stakeholder Engagement 

 Research, Development and Innovation 

 Security and Resilience 

 Socio-Economics 

 Supply Chain 

 Transport and Logistics 
 

Page 2



The Board were advised that the planned Sellafield expenditure for 2021/22 was 
£2,220m (2020/21 plan was £2,150m). 
 
The highlights for 2021-24 were: 

 Begin retrievals from the Pile Fuel Cladding Silo and Magnox Swarf 
Storage Silo. 

 Complete Magnox reprocessing. 

 Complete decommissioning and demolition of the upper diffuser section 
of the Windscale Pile Chimney Number 1. 

 Support SME organisations by increasing overall spend with them in line 
with the Government growth agenda. 

 
The Board were then advised that the planned LLWR expenditure for 2021/22 
was £77m (2020/21 plan was £82m). 
 
The highlights for 2021-24 were: 

 Transition to NDA subsidiary (July 2021). 

 PCM magazine demolition. 

 Enabling works for phased construction of the final cap for trenches 1 to 7 
and Vault 8. 

 
The Board were advised that consultation on the Business Plan commenced on 
7th December 2020 and runs until 1st February 2021. 
In early February 2021, the NDA will consolidate responses and update the draft 
Business Plan with the aim of publishing by the end of March 2021. 
 
During the discussion that followed; 
 
Councillor Pollen asked about funding and suggested this was a major issue 
going forward. 
 
Stephen Asquith replied that the level of funding for 2021/22 showed a level of 
confidence in the business and that NDA would take part I the Government 
spending review for future years. 
 
Councillor Moore asked about LLWR and if when they become part of the NDA, 
would this result in a direct saving. 
 
In reply, it was confirmed it would be a saving in terms of fees. 
A vote was then taken by way of a roll call.  
 
 
 

Page 3



On a vote of 7 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:- 
 
RESOLVED – that 
a) the information in the presentation be noted, 
b) comments on the draft NDA Business Plan consultation response be provided 
by 18th January 2021, prior to the consultation deadline of 1st February 2021,  
     and  
c)  authority be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with the 
     Chair of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board and the Portfolio  
     holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services to submit the Council’s  
     final consultation response.  
 

SN 20/23 GDF Working Group Update  
 
The Nuclear Projects Manager introduced a report on the UK Government’s 
approach to identifying a site and a willing host community for a Geological 
Disposal Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive waste, as described within 
the Government’s Working with Communities policy. 
 
Members were reminded that at the Executive meeting held on 21 July 2020, it 
was agreed that the Council open discussions with Radioactive Waste 
Management (RWM) Ltd with a view to establishing a Working Group in 
Copeland, to explore any potential sites for consideration as a location for a 
GDF.  
 
The decision was made with the following conditions attached: 

 That those areas of the Borough currently within the boundary of the Lake 
District National Park (both above and below ground) are excluded from 
any consideration from the outset. 

 That in recognition of the current Working with Communities (WwC) 

process which allows for a GDF to be located in an ‘in-shore area’, that the 

in-shore area off the coast of Copeland is worthy of consideration  

 That the Council wants to see a credible and independent Chair appointed 

to the Working Group and that all the Councils legitimate costs of 

engaging in the process are covered. 

 

Board Members were also reminded that they had previously been appraised of 

the intentions of the other Interested Parties across the Borough and their plans 

to establish a Working Group, and the ‘route map’ of workstreams that would 

be required to get to the point of launching a Working Group. 

Page 4



Throughout the summer several meetings with RWM and the other Interested 
Parties were held to discuss a range of issues that needed to be considered in 
the process leading up to the launch of a Working Group. 
 
Forming a Working Group is the first formal step in the Government’s 
‘Working with Communities’ policy with 3 specific aims.  
The Working Group would. 

 Engage with local people to begin to understand their views, based on 

achieving the twin aims of finding a suitable site and a willing host 

community,  

 Identify and propose a Search Area (or Areas) for further consideration.  

 Recruit initial members for a Community Partnership, that could take the 

process further forward beyond a Working Group.  

 
As a reminder to Members, the Council’s engagement at the Working Group 
stage does not pre-suppose support for a GDF in Copeland. According to the 
WwC process, any future decision on this matter will be subject to a future Test 
of Public Support (ToPS), much later in the process.  
 
Meetings with RWM and the other Interested Parties have considered a range 
of work streams including: 

 Appointment of an Independent Chair and Mark Cullinan has now been 

appointed to that role. 

 Establishing Terms of Reference for the Working Group 

 Appointing Secretarial, Facilitation and Communications support for the 

Working Group 

 Considering membership of the Working Group 

 Establishing a work plan for the Group 

 Developing a Communications Plan for the launch and on-going work of 

the Group including the creation of a website and social media platforms 

for the Group  

 Consideration of arrangements for establishing a Community Partnership, 

should this be an agreed way forward, including the mechanism for 

distributing Community Investment Funding. 

 
The culmination of the work up to the end of October was the media 
launch of the Copeland Working Group on 4th November. A Member briefing 
session for all Members of the Council was held on 3rd November to appraise 
councillors of the launch. On the day of the launch a Working Group website 
became live and this provides information about a range of topics, including the 

Page 5



technical, safety and environmental aspects of a GDF, as well as details on how 
members of the public can get involved.  
The website can be viewed at ‘workinginpartnership.org.uk’. 
 
The first formal meeting of the Working Group took place on 19th November and 
future meetings are scheduled for every month. The Working Group is expected 
to be in place for between 6 and 9 months. As well as the independent Chair, 
members of the Working Group include an independent Facilitator along with 
representatives from the four interested parties, including the Council, and 
Radioactive Waste Management (RWM – a subsidiary of the Nuclear 
Decommissioning Authority).  Copeland Association of Local Councils (CALC) 
have also been invited to join. The County Council has so far declined an 
invitation to attend the Working Group meetings.  
 
Reports of Working Group discussions will be made available via the website. 
The work of the Working Group is supported by a range of officers provided by 
RWM including secretarial and administrative support, community engagement 
and communications leads, and technical advisors as required. Copeland 
Borough Council is represented by the Council’s Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 
Commercial Services with appropriate officer support, the costs of the officer 
support are eligible for recovery from RWM.  
 
During the discussion that followed; 
 
Councillor Pollen asked for it to be made very clear that the Council was not pre-
disposed, but neutral on this subject. Concerns from all sides need to be 
considered. 
He noted that the County Council had declined to take part in the process at this 
point. Councillor Moore confirmed that the leader of the County Council had 
been invited. 
Councillor Pollen also queried the appointment of an Individual Parish Councillor 
to the Working Group and was advised that this was an ‘Interested Party’ who 
had put a proposal forward. 
 
Councillor Wilson asked about Interested Parties, and was concerned that these 
may not represent the areas for which they are proposing as a host community. 
 
As Local Government Reform was underway, Councillor Wilson was 
disappointed that the County Council was not taking part in such a significant 
issue. 
 

Page 6



Councillor Banks expressed concern that a GDF was being discussed and areas 
being put forward by unelected persons, without knowledge of what material 
was going to be stored there and by whom. 
 
The Nuclear Sector Development Manager advised that an inventory containing 
eight categories had been created by RWM and the Council has yet to agree a 
position on this. It was also clarified that the Working Group would not be 
making any decisions on the location of a GDF. 
 
Councillor Pollen shared the concerns of Councillor Banks. 
He also asked for clarification regarding the monetary incentive for taking part in 
the process. 
It was confirmed that only officer time was being covered for this process. 
If we moved to Community Partnership that would trigger £1m per year 
investment, for each area put forward. 
 
Councillor Morgan asked Councillor Moore to clarify his role on the Working 
Party and it was confirmed that he was there representing the Council as 
Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services. 
 
A vote was then taken by way of a roll call.  
 
On a vote of 7 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:- 
 
RESOLVED – that the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board note the current 
position in relation to the Government’s search for a suitable site and willing 
community to host a Geological Disposal Facility, 
 

SN 20/24 10 Point Plan for a Green Industrial Revolution  
 
The Nuclear Projects Manager introduced this report to the Board following the 
Prime Minister’s announcement on 18 November 2020 setting out a 10 point 
plan for a Green Industrial Revolution, aimed at Building Back Better, Supporting 
Green Jobs and Accelerating the UK’s path to Net Zero Emissions. 

The plan focuses on increasing ambition in the following areas: 

 advancing offshore wind 

 driving the growth of low carbon hydrogen 

 delivering new and advanced nuclear power 

 accelerating the shift to zero emission vehicles 

 green public transport, cycling and walking 

Page 7



 ‘jet zero’ and green ships 

 greener buildings 

 investing in carbon capture, usage and storage 

 protecting our natural environment 

 green finance and innovation 

The ten point plan will mobilise £12 billion of government investment, and 
potentially 3 times as much from the private sector, to create and support up to 
250,000 green jobs. 

A discussion followed concentrating on how this might impact on Copeland, 
particularly with the Energy White Paper that is due shortly. 
 
Councillor Pollen asked how much of this was new money and how this 
compared with other countries. 
With regards the ‘green transport plan’, in Copeland there is not any transport 
plan. 
 
Councillor Wilson agreed and added that there was also no transport in the 
south of Copeland. 
 
Councillor Banks although broadly supporting the principle, stated that the 
practicalities of electric charging in the rural areas were unrealistic. 
 
Councillor Dinsdale suggested that future Planning permissions could include a 
requirement for electric charging. 
 
The Nuclear Projects Manager agreed to take note of the comments made and 
will bring this back to the Board when the Government’s White Paper arrives.  
 
 

SN 20/25 Public Accounts Committee Report on NDA's Management of the 
Magnox Contract  
 
The Board considered a report from the House of Commons Public Accounts 
Committee on the NDAs management of the Magnox contract. 
 
The conclusions and recommendations stated within the report were: 
 

1. There remains significant uncertainty over the cost and timetable for 
decommissioning the Magnox sites and estimates continue to increase. 
 

Page 8



Rec: The NDA should set out how it will develop a clearer means of 
reporting publicly on the level of uncertainty and risk across its sites. 

 
2. The uncertainty affecting the Magnox sites reflects a wider uncertainty 

about the costs and timetable of decommissioning the whole civil nuclear 
estate. 
 
Rec: Taking into account the feedback from its public consultation, the 
Nuclear Decommissioning Authority should exploit opportunities to 
reduce the time taken to decommission its sites, and should identify the 
impact of such reductions on the cost profile. 
 

3. A shortage of the right skills within the Nuclear Decommissioning 
Authority and across the nuclear industry remains a significant barrier to 
progress. 
 
Rec: Within 6 months of publication of this report, the Department and 
the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority should publish a detailed plan for 
how they plan to meet the demand for skills across the UK nuclear 
industry over the next 5–10 years. 

 
4. For the new delivery model to work, it will be vital that the Department 

exercises strong oversight of the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority and 
implements the findings of forthcoming reviews into the failure of the 
original Magnox contract and the role of the Authority. 
 
Rec: On publication of the Holliday report and tailored review, the 
Department and the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority should set out 
publicly what has been learnt from them and how the reports are being 
used to inform the development of the new delivery and governance 
models. 
 

5. The Nuclear Decommissioning Authority is not doing enough to exploit its 
various assets, either for the benefit of local communities or the UK 
economy as a whole. 
 
Rec: The NDA should develop a strategy for maximising the economic 
benefits of developing and, where appropriate, exporting its knowledge 
and assets to alleviate the burden on the taxpayer. These include the skills 
and experience of the UK nuclear industry, the 
decommissioning technologies it has developed, and the land and other 
physical assets the NDA holds. 

 

Page 9



6. Public accountability is hindered by a lack of transparency about the scale 
and nature of the challenge of decommissioning and the performance of 
the NDA. 
 
Rec: NDA should be more transparent about its current and future plans 
with the local communities surrounding its 17 sites to strengthen public 
accountability and make clear the socioeconomic impact of its planned 
activities. 

 
A discussion followed where:- 
 
Councillor Morgan referred to the NDAs surplus properties and suggested that if 
there are any such properties in Copeland, the Council should be looking at 
them with a view to possibly taking them back. 
 
Councillor Moore mentioned that an area around the LLWR site at Drigg was 
already being looked at by Drigg & Carleton Parish Council. 
 
Councillor Pollen stated he would like this Board to focus on the Sellafield and 
NDA socio-economic plan, as he feels not enough is being done for local 
communities and suggested this be a future agenda item. 
 
Councillor Wilson agreed with the comments made by Councillor Pollen. 
 
The Nuclear Projects Manager also suggested that Hazel Blears be invited to a 
meeting of the Board in the new year. 
 
Councillor Banks asked if a list was available showing what property the NDA 
held in the Copeland area. 
Councillor Morgan agreed and asked the Nuclear Projects Manager if this could 
be obtained. 
 

SN 20/26 Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board Forward Plan  
 
The Board considered a draft Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board Forward Plan, 
to show examples of items coming up in the next year. 
 
It was considered that this would be very useful and received broad agreement. 
 
The Nuclear team will develop the plan and bring back to this Board prior to 
publicising to all Councillors. 
 
 

Page 10



SN 20/27 Nuclear Projects Update  
 
The Principal Planning Officer provided the Board with an update regarding 
Nuclear projects. 
 
RESOLVED:- That the Update be noted. 
 

SN 20/28 Exempt Information  
 
Consideration was given to a motion proposing that the remainder of the 
meeting be held in private.  
 
A vote was then taken by way of a roll call.  
 
On a vote of 7 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions, it was therefore:- 
 
RESOLVED – that the press and public be excluded for the remaining items of 
business in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

SN 20/29 Planning Update  
 
The Principal Planning Officer provided the Board with an update of 
developments at Sellafield Limited. 
 
RESOLVED:- That the Update be noted. 
 

SN 20/30 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be a virtual 
meeting on a date to be determined by the Chair and Officers and notice will be 
given in the normal way. 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 4.10 pm  
 

 
Chair 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 180221 

 

UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for Energy 

Production (STEP) Siting Process 

 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager 

 

Summary: 

This paper provides an update to members on the siting process launched 

by the UK Atomic Energy Authority in late 2020 to identify a site for the 

development of a future Fusion facility, known as “STEP”. 

Recommendation: 

That members of the Board: 

1. Note the information in this paper, and; 

2. Recommend that the Council’s Executive Committee supports the 

nomination of the Moorside site and other suitable NDA-owned land 

around Sellafield into the national siting process. 

1. Background 

1.1. The STEP programme is an UKAEA and UK Government initiative to 

accelerate progress towards commercially-viable fusion power, 

through design and construction of a prototype fusion reactor by 

2040. 

1.2. The STEP programme aims to build on the UK’s world-leadership in 

compact fusion technology, and aims to transition from a research-

led sector to industrial-design and delivery. 

1.3. To date, the UK’s fusion development activity has been focussed at 

the Culham Centre for Fusion Energy in Oxfordshire, home to the 

Joint European Torus (JET) and Mega Ampere Spherical Tokamak 

(MAST) fusion test reactors. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 

1.4. However, the UKAEA is now searching for a site elsewhere in the 

UK to construct the STEP facility and to host the associated 

industrial and supply chain facilities. 

2. The Siting Process 

2.1. UKAEA has set out the criteria by which sites will be assessed: 

1. Showstoppers: pass/fail 

2. Commercial terms: score/100 

3. Socio-economic vision: score/100 

4. On-site characteristics: score/100 

5. Off-site characteristics: score/100 

2.2. The elements of these 5 “pools” are shown in the image below: 

 

2.3. Nominations have been invited from a range of organisations that 

meet some basic criteria: 

 The entity is capable (in personnel and funding) to work with 

UKAEA as we assess the proposal 

 The entity has some form of jurisdiction (council, LEP, business 

group, devolved Government) for the area of the site 

 That not more than one entity propose the same site 

 That the proposing entity has the agreement of the landowner 

to propose the site 

2.4. The deadline for nominations into the national siting process is 31st 

March 2021. 

Page 14



 

 

2.5. Further information on the STEP facility and siting process is 

available on the UKAEA website, accessible via the following link: 

https://step.ukaea.uk/  

2.6. To date, representatives from UKAEA have made presentations to 

Cumbrian stakeholders via two Cumbria LEP-hosted online events, 

and to the Nuclear Legacy Advisory Forum. 

2.7. Engagement has also taken place between the Department for 

BEIS, UKAEA and NDA in relation to land ownership and availability 

issues. 

3. Strategic Opportunity 

3.1. This development aligns closely with the vision set out in the 

Cumbria Nuclear Prospectus for a multi-technology clean energy 

park around Moorside, and with the ambition set out in the 

Copeland Vision 2040 for Copeland to be a “globally recognised 

place of innovation” and to become a “major clean energy hub for 

the UK”. 

3.2. The scale of development is likely to be comparable to an 

operational power station, with associated infrastructure and 

research and development facilities. The programme will require 

investment in skills development from apprenticeships to higher 

level skills and UKAEA has committed to working with local 

education and training providers early in the programme. 

3.3. It is likely that the programme will be consented as a Nationally 

Significant Infrastructure Project (NSIP) under a Development 

Consent Order (DCO). STEP will be a project at the international 

forefront of the clean energy revolution, bringing visibility to the 

community on a global stage. 

3.4. The siting process is seeking to identify a site of at least 100 

hectares to host the STEP facility and associated modern, low-

carbon, high-skill and high-value supply chain activity. This £multi-

Page 15

https://step.ukaea.uk/


 

 

billion programme could have a significant immediate and long-

term positive economic and regenerative effect to West Cumbria. 

3.5. As the UK’s Centre of Nuclear Excellence, host to a wealth of 

nuclear capability across industry, supply chain and R&D, Copeland 

is well-placed to support this development. This is further 

reinforced by the potential for transferability with the development 

of advanced fission which already takes place in West Cumbria, led 

by National Nuclear Laboratory as the UK authority on advanced 

fuels and reactor technology. 

4. The Cumbrian Nomination 

4.1. Over the Christmas period, the Cumbria Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP) launched a mini competition to identify a single 

site to be nominated on behalf of Cumbrian stakeholders into the 

national siting process. 

4.2. On behalf of the Council, the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 

Corporate Services nominated the Moorside site and other suitable 

NDA-owned land around the Sellafield site into this Cumbria mini-

competition. 

4.3. The Cumbria LEP will undertake an assessment of any Cumbrian 

sites nominated, making a decision as to which will be taken 

forward into the national siting process by the 5th February 2021. 

4.4. Although the Cumbria LEP is planning to select one Cumbrian site 

only to be nominated, there is no limitation on how many 

nominations from a region may be made into the national siting 

process. 

Page 16



 

 

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 180221 

 

The Nuclear Decommissioning & Radioactive Waste Management 

Policy 

 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mitchell McCombe, Nuclear Sector Development 

Officer 

 

Summary: 

This paper introduces the review of the UK Nuclear Decommissioning & 

Radioactive Waste Policy. A formal consultation is expected to launch 

shortly, so the paper also sets out a suggested plan for the development 

of the Council’s response to a key area of UK Nuclear Policy with 

potentially significant implications for Copeland. 

Recommendation: 

That Members of the Board: 

1. Note the information in this paper; 

2. Commit to contributing to a future SNEB workshop to develop the 

Council’s response; 

3. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the 

Chair of the Board and the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate 

Services to finalise and submit the consultation response, with input 

from members of SNEB as per recommendation 2. 

1. Introduction 

1.1. The Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) is 

the government department responsible for civil nuclear policy in 

the UK. Some specific aspects of nuclear policy are devolved 

matters, such as Higher Activity Waste in Scotland. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

 

1.2. The current Radioactive Waste Management Policy was published 

in July 1995 (Command Paper 2919) and the current 

Decommissioning Policy was published in 2004. 

1.3. Over the last 12 months, BEIS has been engaging with stakeholders 

on plans to update the policy to reflect developments since the 

time of publication. Council officers have been involved in this early 

engagement via the NDA’s Theme Overview Groups. 

1.4. In February 2021, BEIS is due to launch a consultation on the new 

draft Policy. 

2. Policy Drivers 

2.1. The purpose of the new Policy is to set out an up-to-date, coherent, 

high-level policy for the sustainable decommissioning and clean-up 

of the UK’s nuclear facilities. 

2.2. There are a number of drivers for change to the Policy, including: 

 To ensure that the Policy supports the delivery of UK Industrial 

Strategy and Nuclear Sector Deal; 

 To ensure that UK Decommissioning and Radioactive Waste 

Policy are aligned with current NDA Strategy and radioactive 

waste strategy; 

 To ensure that decommissioning and radioactive waste 

management activities are delivered in line with fundamental 

safety principles; 

 To reflect a risk-based approach to integrated waste 

management; 

 To reflect developments in technology, industry best practice 

and approaches to decommissioning; 

 To reflect changes such as those to the guidance on release 

from regulation of nuclear licenses sites in the final stages of 

decommissioning and clean-up; 

 To set out a clean UK policy position on Near Surface Disposal 

and other options for disposal of radioactive wastes; 

Page 18



 

 

 To set out the flow down and influence of international 

standards and good practice; 

 To define the interfaces with other aspects of Policy, including 

spent fuels and nuclear materials management; 

 To reflect the principles of the UN Sustainable Development 

Goals in order to ensure that different parties understand their 

role in sustainable decommissioning and clean-up; 

 Lifecycle/system thinking – to ensure that new installations 

and facilities are designed and operated with decommissioning 

in mind; 

 To set out expectations for the nuclear sector to maintain skills, 

share learning and support the supply chain thereby improving 

the sector’s standing on the domestic and international stage. 

3. Next Steps & Conclusion 

3.1. It is anticipated that the consultation will be launched in February. 

The duration of the consultation is unknown but there is a 

possibility that the timing of the deadline will not align with the next 

meeting of SNEB in April 2021. 

3.2. Therefore, to ensure that members of SNEB have opportunity to 

contribute to the Council’s response, the Nuclear & Energy Team 

proposes that a virtual workshop is held before the consultation 

deadline. The purpose of this workshop will be to share more 

information on the draft Policy document, and collate feedback 

from Members. 

3.3. The Council’s response will be drafted based on input from 

members during this workshop. If timings allow, this response will 

be brought back to a future meeting of SNEB for endorsement. To 

account for the possibility that this is not possible, delegated 

authority for development of the response is requested. In this 

case, the draft response would be circulated to members of SNEB 

for comment before submission. 

Page 19



 

 

3.4. More information will be shared by BEIS and the NDA at a workshop 

in February facilitated by the Nuclear Legacy Advisory Forum 

(NuLeAF), of which the Council is a member. 

Page 20



 

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 180221 

 

The UK Government’s approach to identifying a site for a Geological Disposal 

Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive waste  

 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Smith, Nuclear Projects Manager 

 

Summary: 

This report provides Members with an update on the Government’s search for 

a suitable site and a willing community to host a Geological Disposal Facility 

(GDF) for the disposal of the UK’s higher activity radioactive waste, as described 

within the Government’s Working with Communities (WwC) policy.  

Recommendation: 

That Members of the Board note the current position in relation to the 

Government’s search for a suitable site and willing community to host a GDF and 

specifically the current work of the Copeland Working Group. 

1. Introduction and background 

1.1 At the December meeting of the Board, Members will recall considering a 

report which, 

 Summarised the background to the decision of the Executive in July to 

open discussions with Radioactive Waste Management (RWM), with a 

view to establishing a Working Group in Copeland to explore any potential 

suitable sites for consideration as a location for a GDF, excluding those 

areas of the Borough that lie within the Lake District National Park 

boundary but potentially including the ‘in-shore area’ of the coast of 

Copeland. As a reminder to Members, the Council’s engagement at the 

Working Group stage does not presuppose support for a GDF in Copeland. 

According to the WwC process, any future decision on this matter will be 

subject to a future Test of Public Support (ToPS), much later in the process 

 Referred to the intentions of other Interested Parties to establish a 

Working Group (the first formal stage of the Government’s ‘Working with 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



 

Communities’ policy) and highlighted the work that had been undertaken 

to consider the establishment of a Copeland Working Group, which was 

launched on 4th November, with Mark Cullinan appointed as Independent 

Chair. 

2. Update on the work of the Copeland Working Group  

2.1 As a reminder forming a Working Group is the first formal step in the 

Government’s ‘Working with Communities’ policy with 3 specific aims. The 

Working Group will. 

 Engage with local people to begin to understand their views, based on 

achieving the twin aims of finding a suitable site and a willing host 

community; 

 Identify and propose a Search Area (or Areas) for further consideration;  

 Recruit initial members for a Community Partnership, that could take the 

process forward beyond the Working Group. 

2.2 Since the launch in November the Working Group has met on several 

occasions to consider taking forward the above workstreams. Reports of the 

Working Group discussions are available via the Working Group website 

Working Group Copeland (copeland.workinginpartnership.org.uk). 

Membership of the Working Group has been established and includes 

representatives from. 

 Relevant Principle Local Authorities - Copeland Borough Council 

 Radioactive Waste Management  

 Interested Parties; David Faulkner, Genr8 North Ltd - Andy Ross, Irton 

Hall Ltd - Gary Bullivant 

 Copeland District Association of Local Councils – Cllr Andy Pratt, Chris 

Shaw 

 Independent Chair – Mark Cullinan 

 Independent Facilitator, Nick Gardham 

2.3 Members will be aware that Cumbria County Council has declined an 

invitation to join the Working Group at this stage. The WG is expected to exist 

for up to 12 months.  

2.4 Draft Terms of Reference for the Working Group have been established 

and facilitation, secretarial and communications support functions have been 

put in place, and a work plan is being established. Three sub-groups have 

Page 22

https://copeland.workinginpartnership.org.uk/
https://copeland.workinginpartnership.org.uk/


 

recently been established to take forward the three main workstreams and 

objectives of the Working Group. 

The Communications and Engagement subgroup has met on 3 occasions and is 

currently finalising a Plan to deliver the objective ‘to engage with local people 

to begin to understand their views, based on achieving the twin aims of finding 

a suitable site and a willing host community’. The plan builds on the 

communications work already carried out encompassing press and media 

activities, creation of the Working Group website, which can be viewed by 

following the link above, the launch of the virtual exhibition which can be 

found at https://rwm.virtualconsultation.co.uk/copeland and social media links 

at: 

Copeland Working Group: Overview | LinkedIn 

Copeland Working Group (@Copeland_WG) / Twitter 

Copeland Working Group - Home | Facebook 

A monthly newsletter is also published electronically and made available via 

the website and to those who have registered on the website to receive 

updates. Monitoring of all media activities and responses is also underway. 

2.5 The Communications and Engagement Plan is being developed by the 

Communications and Engagement subgroup. The Group has met on 3 

occasions and the plan aims to develop an integrated package of 

communications and community engagement that will: 

 Explain what it is and why a GDF is needed 

 Explain why the public’s view matters 

 Communicate how issues or questions can be raised  

 As it identifies a Search Area(s), the Working Group will start work to 

understand the local area and any issues or questions the community 

within it may have 

 Gather a range of views which can be taken forward to any potential 

Search Area discussion 

The Plan runs from Feb through to June and in recognition of current pandemic 

restrictions is having to utilise virtual means of communication. It is hoped that 

when the restrictions are eased more traditional means of engaging with the 

community can be re-introduced to the plan, recognising that not all residents 

and groups have on-line access.  

Page 23

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Frwm.virtualconsultation.co.uk%2Fcopeland&data=04%7C01%7CSteve.Smith%40copeland.gov.uk%7C99d43951cf7545dc290108d8bde147eb%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1%7C0%7C637468122671712597%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=o0lsQNqmRX3Vq313Up9sTNao7uNKosRIaKyAyOWKrZw%3D&reserved=0


 

2.6 The second subgroup looking at a proposed Search Area(s) has had an 

initial scoping meeting and is now pulling together the information sources 

required to carry out the task, which will start in earnest at the next meeting. 

The third subgroup looking at matters relating to the potential establishment 

of a Community Partnership is meeting for the first time on 8th February.  The 

scope of this workstream is about identifying potential members (based on 

identification of a search area/s) and the process of establishing the 

Community Partnership. This is the area where there is opportunity to call on 

international experience of establishing and running community partnerships, 

relating to GDF/nuclear and non-nuclear issues. A verbal update on progress 

with this workstream and any further progress on the others will be reported 

at the meeting.  

Page 24


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 December 2020
	6 UKAEA STEP siting process
	7 The Nuclear Decommissioning & Radioactive Waste Management Policy
	8 The UK Government's approach to identifying a site for a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for higher-activity radioactive waste.

